BEAUFORT COUNTY DESIGN REVIEW BOARD (DRB) MINUTES

February 1, 2018, Grace Coastal Church, 15 Williams Drive, Okatie, SC

Members Present: James Atkins, Peter Brower, H. Pearce Scott and Donald L. Starkey

Members Absent: J. Michael Brock and Brad Hill

Staff Present: Eric Greenway, Interim Director; Nancy Moss, Planner and Heather Spade, Planning

Assistant

Guests: Tom Parker, PDG Architects and J. J. Stokes, Stokes Brown Toyota

1. CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Atkins called the meeting to order at 2:30 pm.

- **2. MINUTES:** Chairman Atkins asked if there were comments on the January 11, 2018 minutes. No comments were made. Mr. Starkey motioned to approve the minutes as written. Mr. Scott seconded to approve. Motion carried.
- **3. PUBLIC COMMENT:** There was no public comment.

4. NEW BUSINESS:

A. Stokes Brown Toyota Addition – Bluffton – Final

Ms. Moss gave the project background. Mr. Atkins asked if there were any public comments about this project and no comments were made. Tom Parker, the project Architect, made the presentation. He said that they revised the plans to address the staff comments, that they were adding an 8,800 SF service bay off of the existing service bay, the parts bin area would be extended out and a small restroom will be added on. Mr. Parker said that most of the work would be added on the east and back portions of the building and that three new service office bays would be added onto the west building gable element which would have a gabled roof with materials to match the existing building. He stated that the east parking lot curb and gutter would be demolished and replaced to allow proper drainage, that no new parking lot lighting would be added to the site, the addition exterior walls would have full cut-off pack lighting which would match the existing fixtures and that the landscape plan issues mentioned in the staff comments have been addressed. Mr. Parker said that the mass and scale of the new service bay was a continuation of the existing service bay; it aligned perfectly with the existing bay and the subtle color and control joints line up and match the existing structure. Mr. Parker said there was a new lean-to proposed in the back which would not be visible from Highway 278.

Mr. Brower said that he had no problem with the design and agreed with Mr. Parker that the service bay addition would be minimally visible from Highway 278.

Mr. Starkey compared the aerial view of the property with the landscape plan and said that there didn't appear to be as many existing trees along Island West Park as were shown on the landscape plan. He said that two areas looked to be grassed areas without any trees and that additional evergreen plantings should be incorporated into the landscape design.

Mr. Scott said that it was a seamless design and had no other comments about this project.

Mr. Atkins said that even though the addition was service orientated, try to avoid unarticulated facades to meet the design guidelines. He said that the north service addition facade needed more detail or shade and shadow to break it up and that score joints would possibly help compliment the design. Mr. Parker said they were relying on the palms within the foundation buffer to break it up and that if metal awning treatments were added it would eliminate all of the trees in the foundation buffer. Mr. Atkins said to consider faux window openings or a facade with score joints to break it up.

Mr. Starkey made a motion to approve this project with the following conditions:

- Provide better vertical articulation, with scoring or other acceptable architectural elements, on the north side of the proposed service bay facade; and,
- Revise the landscape plans to incorporate additional evergreen shrubs and plantings within the landscape planting strip along Island West Park on the east side of the property.

Mr. Scott seconded the motion.

Mr. Atkins added a standard condition to the final approval. He said that "the structure, landscaping, lighting, dumpster enclosure and other design features must be built/installed according to the plans reviewed and approved by the DRB. The material and color board reviewed and approved by the DRB must be adhered to during construction. Any changes to the approved plans or submittals must be requested for and submitted to the DRB for formal approval".

Motion carried.

5. OLD BUSINESS: No Old Business

6. OTHER BUSINESS:

The next scheduled meeting is on Thursday, March 1, 2018 at 2:30 pm at Grace Coastal Church, 15 Williams Drive, Okatie, SC 29909.

7. ADJOURNMENT: Mr. Starkey made a motion to close the meeting and Mr. Scott seconded the motion. The meeting was adjourned at 3:00 p.m.